
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA 
 

5:30 p.m., Monday, February 26, 2024 
Hospital Meeting Rooms C-D 

100 Medical Parkway, Denison, IA 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
A. Previous Month’s Minutes 
B. Special Meeting Minutes (February 20, 2024) 

 
III. BUDGET HEARING FY2024 

A. Fiscal Year Ending 2025 County Property Tax Budget – Discussion / Action 
 

IV. COMMUNITY 
A. Board Chair Comments 
B. Lucas Devices 

 
V. QUALITY CARE AND SERVICES 

A. Quality Committee Report 
B. Medical Staff Report 

 
VI. PATIENT EXPERIENCE 

A. 5 Star Journey Update 
 

VII. PEOPLE 
A. Credentialing 

i. Appointments & Reappointments – Discussion / Action 
B. Mission Committee Report 

 
VIII. GROWTH 

A. Department Reports 
i. Environmental Services 
ii. Maintenance 
iii. Revenue Cycle & Registration 

B. Building Project 
i. Review Prequalified Bidders 

C. CEO Report 
 

IX. FINANCIAL STABILITY 
A. Finance Committee Report 

i. Approval of Payroll & AP 
B. Capital Purchase - Anesthesia Vaporizer 
C. EMR Project Update 

 
X. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
Board of Trustees 
January 29, 2024 

1 | 2 Pages 
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees of Crawford County Memorial Hospital was held on Monday, January 29, 2024, in 
Hospital Board Room D at Crawford County Memorial Hospital, Denison, Iowa, and via WebEx. 
 
Present on site during the meeting were Jay Mendlik, David Reisz, Amy Schultz, Jon Schuttinga, Vernon Sid Leise, 
Heather Rasmussen (Chief Quality & Ancillary Services Officer), Rachel Melby (CFO), Theresa Sheer (CNO), Erin Muck 
(CEO) and Heather Wight (Recorder).  In addition, Wendell Spencer (CRNA), Randy Kilnoski (CRNA), Abby Houston (Nurse 
Director or Surgical Services), Travis Mettenbrink (Director of Clinics), Carmen Swertzic (left at 7:04) and Dan Mundt 
(Denison Free Press left at 7:35). Not in attendance was Dr. Michael Luft (Chief Medical Officer). 
 
Present via Webex were Dr. David Wright (Chief of Staff left at 5:40), Brandon Griffin (Graham Construction joined at 
5:39), Matt Cramer (INVISION joined at 5:47 and left at 6:35), Angie Nees (INVISION joined at 5:48 and left at 6:35), Heidi 
Willis (INVISION joined at 5:52 and left at 6:44). 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Board of Trustees meeting was called to order at 5:31 p.m. by Mendlik.   
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MONTH’S MINUTES 
A motion was made by Schuttinga, second by Leise, to approve the December 18, 2023, minutes as presented. Motion 
carried unanimously.   
 
COMMUNITY 
Board Chair Comments 
Mendlik reported  a full agenda tonight with a lot of good things going on with. There will be updates on some of the 
foundational moves that been going on the last few months. 
 
Public Comments 
There were no public comments. 
 
Wellness Center Update 
The Wellness Center project was recently awarded a 1-million-dollar CAT grant contingent on the fundraising being 
completed in the next six months. With this grant, the funding is at 80%. In addition to the CAT grant, New Market Tax 
Credits may bring in more investors and the committee should know by the end of the month if that will apply. The 
committee is also working on a 2-million-dollar endowment. The City of Denison did approve to enter into a contract 
with the YMCA to run the Wellness Center and that contract will start about 6 months before opening. Facility design is 
about 60% complete and groundbreaking is expected in June 2024 and is expected to take 18 to 24 months.  
 
QUALITY CARE AND SERVICES 
Quality Committee Report 
• Rasmussen gave a brief update of the Quality Committee activities including current HCAHPS scores, the quality 

scorecard, and the November mammography inspection where no deficiencies were found.  
• Recommend Board action regarding Medical Staff Accountable Care Committee recommendations for approval of 

Medical Staff privileges and appointment/re-appointment applications. 
 
Medical Staff Report 
Wright gave a summary of the recent Medical Staff meeting which included provider medical staff elections and 
appointments for committees. Dr. David Wright was re-elected as Chief of Staff and Dr. Patrick Luft was nominated and 
elected as Vice President.  
 
 



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
Board of Trustees 
January 29, 2024 

2 | 2 Pages 
 

Conflict of Interest Statement 
Muck reviewed the Conflict-of-Interest Statement.  The Board is required to sign one every year.  The leadership team 
and providers will also be signing one.   
 
A motion was made by Reisz, second by Schultz, to approve the Board signature of the Conflict-of-Interest Statement. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
PATIENT EXPERIENCE 
5-Star Journey Update 
Muck gave an update on the upcoming kickoff of the Service Excellence Council Refocus in February and this year’s 
training. This year will be focused on customer service during times of transition. The 5 Star Nurse program 
implementation is in process in all of the clinical departments and there will be 5 Star Provider training at Medical Staff 
and provider meetings. The OASIS teams for this year are Wayfinding and Signage and Patient Wellness and 
Preventative Care. 
 
Patient Letters 
Patient thank you letters were shared with the Board. All identifying information has been redacted to comply with 
HIPAA. 
 
PEOPLE 
Credentialing 
A motion was made by Schultz, second by Reisz, to approve Medical Staff appointments of Kylee Lefebvre and Euclid St. 
Hill, and reappointments of David Jaskierny and Erin Schechinger as presented. Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Mission Committee Report 
Muck shared that everything that was discussed during Mission Committee would be addressed individually through the 
rest of the agenda.   
 
Policy Updates 
Policy 105.00 Board of Trustee Public Access Policy, Policy 105.01 Investment Policy, Policy 105.03 Document 
Provision and Requests Policy, and Policy 105.04 Personal Information Policy were reviewed. No changes are 
recommended for these policies. 
 
A motion was made by Schuttinga, second by Leise, to approve Policy 105.00, 105.01, 105.03, and 105.04 without 
changes. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Policy 105.02 Physician Recruitment Policy 
Policy 105.02 Physician Recruitment Policy is recommended to be updated as needed and reviewed as necessary but not 
less than every 2 years. 
 
A motion was made by Reisz, second by Schultz, to approve policy 105.02 with the change of review term from every 3 
years to every 2 years to keep with other Board policy reviews. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
GROWTH 
Department Reports 
Surgery 
Houston shared statistics, department updates and goals for the Surgery department this year. She also shared a few 
current DO IT projects which include Thank You cards signed by the surgery staff for all patients which has received a lot 



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
Board of Trustees 
January 29, 2024 

3 | 2 Pages 
 

of positive feedback. Interpreter communication forms and patient education documents for all general surgery cases 
have also been created and implemented. 
 
Medical Clinic & Specialty Clinic 
Mettenbrink shared current recruiting efforts, Press Ganey RHC score improvement of every domain from 2022 to 2023, 
5 Star Nurse program and Main Street Health implementation that is scheduled for March. He also shared specialty clinic 
updates including an additional clinic day for the newest dermatologist, another provider with nephrology and the 
upcoming retirement of Marcy Larson. 
 
Building Project Update 
Willis shared that the design development phase has been completed and Graham Construction is currently working on 
pricing. Willis also shared a tentative timeline and renderings of the completed project. Muck shared options for the first 
phase of the project which primarily affects the medical clinic and rehab services. 
 
CEO Report 
Muck shared the new CCMH website is up and running. Maintenance of the new website will be done in house so 
updates and content changes can be made, when necessary, without having to rely on someone else and being charged 
each time. Upcoming events include Strategic Planning scheduled for February 20th, the annual EMS Conference on 
March 2nd, the Iowa Hospital Association’s Governance Forum on March 5th, and Hospital Day on the Hill is March 6th. 
 
FINANCIAL STABILITY 
Tax Budget 
Melby summarized the 2025 county budget and tax asking.  In reviewing the current challenges in healthcare locally and 
nationwide the Finance Committee is not proposing a rate increase, but rather recommends leaving the tax levy rate the 
same as last year.  
 
A motion was made by Schultz, second by Schuttinga, to approve the tax asking rate of $1.56739 per $1,000 of assessed 
value. Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Hearing Date 
A motion was made by Schuttinga, second by Reisz, to set the tax asking hearing date of February 26, 2024 @ 5:30 p.m. 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Finance Committee Report 

1. Total Payroll & Accounts Payable of $3,781,900.52 for payment. 
 

A motion was made by Leise, second by Reisz, to approve the financial report, total payroll, and accounts payables in the 
amount of $3,781,900.52.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
EMR Update 
Melby shared the EMR Field of Dreams themed kickoff last Thursday. The next step is workflow and integration which is 
where future state workflows and integration points between departments are reviewed to identify any opportunities or 
risks. February training will be Train the Trainer training which will allow the super users to learn how to teach the end 
users. End of March is the first round of integration testing, where process mapping will occur to test how well 
everything works together for both the clinical and financial aspects. 
 
 
 



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
Board of Trustees 
January 29, 2024 

4 | 2 Pages 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Schultz, second by Schuttinga, that the meeting be adjourned at 7:39 p.m.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
Board of Trustees 
February 20, 2024 

1 | 2 Pages 
 

A meeting of the Board of Trustees of Crawford County Memorial Hospital was held on Tuesday, February 20, 2024, in 
Meeting Rooms C & D at Crawford County Memorial Hospital, Denison, Iowa. 
 
Present on site during the meeting were Jay Mendlik, David Reisz, Vernon Sid Leise, Jon Schuttinga, Amy Schultz, Rachel 
Melby (CFO), Erin Muck (CEO), Heather Rasmussen (Chief Quality & Ancillary Services Officer), Theresa Sheer (CNO), Don 
Luensmann (Executive Director of Marketing and Development), Travis Mettenbrink (Director of Clinics), Randy Kilnoski 
(Director of Anesthesia), Macy Waldemar (Human Resources Manager), Dr. David Wright (Chief of Staff), Dr. Michael 
Luft (Chief Medical Officer arrived at 4:49), Dr. Patrick Luft, Dr. Elizabeth Ranniger, Dr. John Ingram, Jill Kierscht (ARNP), 
Erin Schechinger (ARNP arrival at 4:45), Lori Johannsen (PA-C arrived at 4:45), Julie Graeve (ARNP arrived at 4:49), 
Wendell Spencer (CRNA), and Heather Wight (Recorder). 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The Board of Trustees meeting was called to order at 4:37 p.m. by Mendlik.   
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION PURSUANT TO IOWA CODE 
Section 21.5 (1)(l) To discuss marketing and pricing strategies and proprietary information where public disclosure of 
such information would harm the hospital’s competitive position. Open Session – Possible Action 
 
The Board went into Closed Session at 4:47 p.m. with a motion made by Reisz, second by Schuttinga. Motion carried 
unanimously. Members present during the closed session were Jay Mendlik, David Reisz, Vernon Sid Leise, Jon 
Schuttinga, Amy Schultz, Rachel Melby (CFO), Erin Muck (CEO), Heather Rasmussen (Chief Quality & Ancillary Services 
Officer), Theresa Sheer (CNO), Don Luensmann (Executive Director of Marketing and Development), Travis Mettenbrink 
(Director of Clinics), Randy Kilnoski (Director of Anesthesia), Macy Waldemar (Human Resources Manager), Dr. David 
Wright (Chief of Staff), Dr. Michael Luft (Chief Medical Officer), Dr. Patrick Luft, Dr. Elizabeth Ranniger, Dr. John Ingram, 
Jill Kierscht (ARNP), Erin Schechinger (ARNP), Lori Johannsen (PA-C), Julie Graeve (ARNP), Wendell Spencer (CRNA), and 
Heather Wight (Recorder). 
 
Luensmann led the strategic planning brainstorming session which included discussions of service lines, financials, 
reimbursement, and physician/staff recruitment.  
 
A motion was made at 6:39 p.m. by Leise, second by Reisz, to return the Board to Open Session. Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
No action was taken. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
A motion was made by Leise, second by Reisz, that the meeting be adjourned at 6:39 p.m.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
 



CATHERINE MARON
387 3RD ST
MAGNOLIA, IA 51550
REF: OWNERS NOTIFICATION OF
ABANDONED
The following vehicle, which Iowa

records indicate is registered to you,
has been determined abandoned with
section 321.89 of the Code of Iowa

REGISTERED OWNER: Catherine
Maron
ADDRESS: 387 3rd St, Magnolia, IA
51550
YEAR: 2007 Ford Focus ZX4
VIN No: 1FAFP34NX7W152345
PERSONAL PROPERTY: Unknown
You are hereby notified that you

have the right to reclaim this motor ve-
hicle and any personal property con-
tained in it, within ten days of the date
of this notice, upon payment of all tow-
ing, preservation, and storage charges
resulting from placing this vehicle and
property into custody and upon pay-
ment of the costs of this notice. This
vehicle is being held at Waderich Tow-
ing. Please contact 712-263-3687 for
more information or to reclaim your
vehicle.

Your failure to exercise your right
to reclaim this motor vehicle and prop-
erty within the time provided shall be
deemed a waiver of all your rights, ti-
tle, claim and interest in this vehicle
and property and failure to reclaim is
deemed consent to the sale of this ve-
hicle at public auction or disposal of
the vehicle to a demolisher, and dis-
posal of any personal property as di-
rected by state law.

Any person claiming rightful pos-
session of this vehicle or personal
property may, by written notice deliv-
ered to Waderich Towing, obtain an
evidentiary hearing should they dis-
pute the planned disposition of the
above described vehicle and property
or dispute the assessment of fees and
charges provided. This request must
be made by certified return mail within
the above stated ten day period.

Thank You
Roger Waderich

Dba: Waderich Towing

MELISSA LINN KAUB
2450 H AVE
DENISON, IA 51442
REF: OWNERS NOTIFICATION
OF ABANDONED
The following vehicle, which Iowa

records indicate is registered to you,
has been determined abandoned with
section 321.89 of the Code of Iowa

REGISTERED OWNER: Melissa Linn
Kaub
ADDRESS: 2450 H Ave, Denison, IA
51442
YEAR: 2007 Hyundai Santa Fe
VIN No: 5NMSG13D07H095128
PERSONAL PROPERTY: Unknown
You are hereby notified that you

have the right to reclaim this motor ve-
hicle and any personal property con-
tained in it, within ten days of the date
of this notice, upon payment of all tow-
ing, preservation, and storage charges
resulting from placing this vehicle and
property into custody and upon pay-
ment of the costs of this notice. This
vehicle is being held at Waderich Tow-
ing. Please contact 712-263-3687 for
more information or to reclaim your
vehicle.

Your failure to exercise your right
to reclaim this motor vehicle and prop-
erty within the time provided shall be
deemed a waiver of all your rights, ti-
tle, claim and interest in this vehicle
and property and failure to reclaim is
deemed consent to the sale of this ve-
hicle at public auction or disposal of
the vehicle to a demolisher, and dis-
posal of any personal property as di-
rected by state law.

Any person claiming rightful pos-
session of this vehicle or personal
property may, by written notice deliv-
ered to Waderich Towing, obtain an
evidentiary hearing should they dis-
pute the planned disposition of the
above described vehicle and property
or dispute the assessment of fees and
charges provided. This request must
be made by certified return mail within
the above stated ten day period.

Thank You
Roger Waderich

Dba: Waderich Towing

LEGAL LEGAL

Public Notices: Your Right to Know!

If you’re reading this, someone else could have been reading your ad
Get results TODAY!

CALL 712.263.2122 TODAY!

January 23, 2024
The Board of Supervisors met at

9:00 o’clock A.M. with Jean Heiden,
chair presiding. Members present
were Schultz, Dozark, Heiden,
Muhlbauer, and Rosburg.

Minutes of the previous meeting
were read and approved.

On motion, the Board recognized
claims for the Public Health
Department and approved claims for
all other departments.

Ben Schaben, Assistant to County
Engineer, spoke with the board
about the award of project BRS—
C024(131)—60-24, concrete box
culver on County Rd E16 to Dixon
Construction Co. in the amount of
$874,128.06. The contract wasn’t
available during this time. No action
was taken.

A motion was made by Schultz,
seconded by Dozark to approve the
following resolution:

RESOLUTION 2024-7
Detour for Closing A
Numbered Route

WHEREAS, Section 306.41 of the
Code of Iowa 2014, provides that
any County numbered road, closed
for over forty-eight hours, shall have
a designated detour route, and

WHEREAS, Construction Project
BRS-C024(131)--60-24 will require
that County Route E16 (AKA D Ave.).,
between 120th St. and 130th St. be
closed to all traffic for several weeks
because of a bridge replacement
project.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT
RESOLVED by the Crawford
County Board of Supervisors that
the following described route be
designated as a DETOUR and that
signs be erected accordingly for
the duration of the construction, as
determined by the County Engineer:

The DETOUR shall commence at
the junction of County Route E16

(AKA D Ave.) and County Road
L37 (Teak Ave.) in Monona County,
thence North 4.2 miles on County
Road L37 to County Road D54 (AKA
330th St.) in Woodbury County,
thence East 7.4 miles on County
Road D54 to County Road L51 (AKA
Eagle Ave.) in Ida County, thence
South 4 miles on County Road L51 to
County Road E16 (AKA D Ave.)
in Crawford County.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that
upon completion of the construction
work, as determined by the County
Engineer, the DETOUR shall be
terminated without further action by
this Board.

Voting Aye: Schultz, Dozark,
Heiden, Muhlbauer, and Rosburg.
Motion was passed unanimously.

Riley Gibson, Turnkey Logistics,
from Summit Carbon Solutions
gave the Board an update on the
pipelines.

Paul Plumb, Executive Director, of
Chamber and Development Council
of Crawford County, and Stephanie
Wiese, CDC Board President, met
with the board to request funds for
the Chamber and Development.
No action was taken at this time.

Joe Langel and Keith Duncan from
Holmes Murphy Insurance, spoke to
the Board (via Zoom) about some
services that will benefit the county
and employees.

A discussion was made by the
Board to set a time and date for a
public hearing on land rent auction
for the Crawford County Farm. No
action was taken at this time.

On motion duly seconded the
Board adjourned at 11:29
o’clock A.M.

Agendas for the next meeting
are posted and available at the
Courthouse on Friday at 4:30 o’clock
P.M. preceding the next meeting.

County Auditor
Chairperson

Vendor, Description ....... Paid
141 One Stop LLC, Fuel.........158.88
Access Systems, Copier Maintenance

......................................175.05
Advanced Communication Services,

Electrical ...................... 1,246.18
Ahlers & Associates, Ahlers

Electronic Charting .......... 905.00
Ampride Truck Plaza, Equipment

Supplies .......................1,592.46
Arkfeld, Jon, Damages .......1,938.00
Asp Enterprises Inc, Engr. Fabric

...................................1,875.00
Baker, Lue, Hospice Chaplain

Service........................... 450.00
Barns & Bins, LLC, Damages

...................................1,483.00
Bauer Built, Tires............. 24,554.28
Black Hills Energy, Natural Gas

Service..............................13.49
Blum, Phillip G, Damages ...1,206.00
Bomgaars, Shop Tool.........2,154.23
Bradley, Rod, Services ......5,677.50
Brown Rentals 3 LLC, Dhs Rent

..................................... 725.00
Buena Vista County, Phn - Epsdt

...................................1,350.81
Cady Business Technologies, Inc,

Telephone..................... 4,187.09
Careficient, Inc, Emr Software

................................... 1,717.78
CE Solutions, Continuing Ed.. 650.00
Central Iowa Detention, Transport

..................................... 472.00
City Of Charter Oak, Utilities.. 54.55
City Of Ricketts, Utilities ..........48.41
City Of Westside, Utilities........71.02
CJ Electronics, Batteries...........41.71
Cnh Capital, Filters ............ 1,156.81
Column Software, PBC, Board

Proceedings .................... 517.29
Crawford County Sheriff, Serve

Notices ........................2,528.68
Crittenton Center, Detention 1,959.30
Custom Motorcycle & Sm Eng,

Chainsaw Repairs.............133.98
Denison Auto Parts and Machine,

Hydraulic Fluid/Absorbent 153.05

Denison Bulletin Review, Public
Notice.............................247.08

Denison Municipal Utilities, Utilities
......................................324.98

District A Homecare Directors, Home
Health Dues .......................15.00

Echo Group Inc, Parts ............ 42.33
Erlbacher Bros Inc, Hauling 5,720.62
Farmers Mutual Coop Telephone Co,

E911 Telephone................. 35.50
First National Bank of Omaha,

Tools/Vehicle ...................203.95
Frontier, Telephone ............2,232.33
Greene County Medical Center-

Public Health, Phn-Epsdt....782.01
Hallett Materials, Ice Control Sand

................................... 1,291.22
Harrison County Rec, Np Utilities

......................................845.11
Hawkeye Truck Equipment, Safety

Items ............................1,400.01
Healthcarefirst, Inc, Cahps-Hospice

................................... 1,301.74
Hoffmeier, Linda, Damages 3,017.00
Hungry Canyons Alliance, HC

Membership................. 5,000.00
Hy-Vee Accounts Receivable,

Prisoner Meals .............5,809.00
Inland Truck Parts Co, Parts....910.22
Iowa Health Care Association, Ihca

Membership................. 1,200.00
Iowa Prison Industries, Stickers

..................................... 578.60
Iowa State Association of Counties,

2024 Isac University........ 435.00
J.P. Electric, Ltd, Shop Repairs 198.70
John Deere Financial, Parts ......60.18
Johnson County Sheriff, Service

...................................... 34.68
L G Everist Inc, Bridge Constr.

Material ...................... 3,650.42
Lawson Products Inc, Shop Supplies

..................................... 708.58
Leinen Construction, Building

............................... 207,575.00
Manilla Times LLC, Board

Proceedings .................... 493.00
Marco Inc, Copier Contract .. 303.23

Matheson Tri-Gas Inc, Welding
Supplies ........................1,217.91

McClellan Electric Inc, Electrical
Services ......................... 380.33

McKesson Medical Surgical, Medical
Supplies ....................... 2,932.16

MidAmerican Energy,
Utilities ........................... 370.40

Midwest Compliance Associates,
Hippa/Compliance Consulting
Service........................ 1,000.00

Miller, Craig, Safety Boots.... 200.00
Netsys+, Software Maint .........67.00
New Opportunities Inc, Phn - Ch

......................................228.14
Nextgen Communications, Inc,

Service Fees .................5,945.00
NW Iowa Youth Emergency Serv Ctr,

Detention/Transport.......4,797.00
Observer, The, Board Proceedings

..................................... 498.44
Oden Enterprises Inc, Bridge Maint.

Materials ...................... 2,137.50
Office Stop, The, Office Supplies

........................................13.54
O’Reilly Automotive Inc, Supplies/Oil

......................................199.41
Phil’s Lawn & Landscaping & Nursery

LLC, Snow Removal ...... 2,800.00
Phonetics, Inc, Annual Renewal83.40
Pitney Bowes Inc, Postage Machine

Lease ................................11.30
Quality Truck Service, LLC, Vehicle

Maint ................................70.95
R & J Lincoln Way Farm, Parking Lot

Rent ................................175.00
Racom Corporation, Radio Parts

........................................ 51.12
Reynold’s Clothing, Safety Apparel

...................................5,052.47
RFCC, LLC, Tower Monthly Billing

..................................... 500.00
RL Craft, Roof Repairs............ 197.74
Schechinger, Bruce, Damages

...................................1,086.00
Schechinger, Dan, Damages

...................................2,515.00
Schechinger, Douglas D, Damages

...................................1,086.00

Schechinger, Randal L, Damages
......................................315.00

SCS Engineers, 2024 Fy
Environmental Compliance
.................................. 4,464.00

SMG Garage LLC, Vehicle Maint
..................................... 270.84

Stone Office Products, Lead
Reminders....................... 245.00

Team Chrysler Dodge Ram Jeep,
Vehicle Maint...................232.92

Temporary Aid Program, Monthly
Allocation....................... 100.00

Thrifty White Stores, Prisoner Meds
........................................34.10

V & H Tire Co Inc, Tire Repair . 60.98
Verizon Wireless, Cell Phone/Ipad

Service........................ 2,454.73
Visual Edge It, Printer Contract 92.38
Visual Edge It, Inc, Printer Contract

......................................156.89
Waderich Towing, Towing.....609.90
Wellmark Blue Cross and Blue Shield

Of SD, Claims Paid .... 58,804.86
Western Iowa Power Coop,

Utilities .........................1,606.09
Win, Shared Internet ........ 2,066.66
Wright III, David J, Hospice Medical

Director .......................... 400.00
Ziegler Inc, New Equipment

............................... 378,134.66
Total ......................787,276.86
Fund Totals
0001 General Basic ........48,798.67
0002 General Supplemental

...................................2,814.44
0011 Rural Basic .................. 196.10
0020 Secondary Road ..652,415.06
0037 Tower Maintenance ...... 92.80
4000 Disaster Service ....... 1,551.18
4010 E911......................10,495.50
4100 Assessor .....................173.08
7900 Sanitary Disposal - Landfill

..................................11,935.17
8500 Self-Insurance Internal Serv

Fnd ........................... 58,804.86
Total ......................787,276.86

CITY OF DENISON, IOWA
2023 WAGES

JOHN E AMDOR ........... 2,025.00
JEFFREY ARN ............... 59,225.30
AMANDA J ASHBROOK
...................................12,811.51
MANUEL C BARROSO ...47,686.19
TIMOTHY J BEERY.............. 750.00
JACOB Q BRAWNER ...... 1,750.00
SAMANTHA N CADWELL
..................................... 5,799.75
YOVAN G CARDENAS
................................... 82,426.01
NATHAN D CHRISTENSEN
..................................... 3,119.84
ARRICK K CLAUSEN ..... 71,112.80
OSCAR O CORONA ...... 2,262.50
NADYA L CORTEZ .......... 4,314.75
COREY J CURNYN ............ 800.00
JOSHUA J DAVID.......... 79,033.94
RYAN R DONSCHESKI
................................... 56,360.27
ALEXANDER J EHLERS ..... 8,939.59
DANIEL B EITEN ............. 6,085.80
COLBY A ELLIS ............. 48,278.54
SAMMUEL K ELLIS......... 41,884.34
ADEN D ESQUERA ............ 710.13
MARK EWOLDT............ 59,804.60
OLIVIA FERNANDEZ ..... 32,791.13
JAKE A FINK ..................... 319.00
TY C FINK......................... 362.50
JODIE L FLAHERTY....... 110,122.88
MITCHELL W FLAHERTY... 7,820.00
CHRISTOPHER M FLATTERY
................................... 53,868.19
ISAC A FLORES .............. 1,239.75
JESSICA G GARCIA ........... 525.00
JESSICA G GARCIA ...... 33,846.16
OSCAR GARCIA............. 9,965.10
RYLEE S GEHLSEN .......... 1,735.45
ZOEY GONZALES .......... 9,510.98
BRITTANY A GOODE...... 1,273.13
KANDY L GOSLAR............. 666.75
JUSTIN L GOTTO............ 1,050.00
BLAINE W GRADY............. 319.00
JOHN C GRANZEN SR ... 1,175.00
NICHOLAS A GROTH... 74,451.57
KATIE M GUTHRIE......... 36,400.00
BRADLEY J HANSON.... 49,096.26
RYAN J HENNINGS........ 3,445.75
PAYTON L HENNINGSEN
..................................... 5,607.87
STEPHANIE HENNINGSEN
................................... 35,942.64
AIDAN A HERBERT ......... 2,380.00
ADYSON J HILDEBRAND
..................................... 3,788.13

MICHELLE A HOFFMAN
................................... 19,071.67
HARMONY A HOLT ........ 2,752.76
MATTHEW J HOWLAND
................................... 49,296.93
LAURA A JIRAK OTTO ... 36,835.55
DAVITA JONES ............... 9,938.38
ANDREA A KAITANY ...... 3,221.88
BRIAN J KEMPFERT ....... 44,401.99
CHLOE M KOCH .......... 4,335.00
MATTHEW R KOSKI...... 50,054.59
JAMES C KRAJICEK....... 73,011.40
DOLLY M KROHN.................. 0.01
JENNA A KROHNKE.......... 522.00
JARED R KROPF .............. 1,050.00
CATHY LAHR................ 50,106.71
SUMMER LAMAAK ......... 9,623.27
KEVIN C LARSON ............... 46.75
MARIA LEDESMA............ 5,510.26
RYAN M LEED .............. 65,658.30
CLAIRE M LEINEN.............. 232.00
JAMES D LEMON ........... 2,884.97
DUSTIN R LOGAN............. 825.00
DENIMA M LUND......... 49,467.40
JACK R MACGREGOR .... 1,480.89
CHRISTINE MAHNKEN
................................... 11,210.40
SOPHIE G MAHRT ........ 11,464.77
ERIC J MARTENS .......... 76,763.53
AZAYA R MARTINEZ ....... 3,755.29
YOANDY MARTINEZ ...... 7,559.79
JEREMY W MCKINNEY
................................... 55,530.26
LOLA J MENDLIK ............... 297.25
ABBEY M MESECK.......... 1,852.25
CADY N MESECK........... 4,879.89
HAILEY O MESECK ............ 384.25
CHARLES MEYER .......... 60,456.69
ERIC M MEYERS ........... 12,977.05
GREGORY J MILLER............ 875.00
RILEY K MILLER..................... 69.00
SOPHIA MUJICA ............ 4,525.51
TYLER J MULLIN .............. 6,845.08
JACOB L MUSFELDT........ 9,893.64
BRITTANY D MUSGRAVE .... 567.09
MEGAN N NAHNSEN ...... 101.50
LEONARDO D NAVA ...... 2,439.06
SAWYER L NEEMANN....... 605.64
CAMDYN D NEMITZ ......... 319.00
MARILYN J NEMITZ......... 3,862.50
JULIE A NEUMAYER ........ 5,630.63
NORMA S NICHOLS .... 37,087.63
BRIANNA N NIELSEN........ 223.09
MCKENNON A OLSON
..................................... 1,670.76
TARYN A OXENDALE......... 476.01
CARLOS PAZ.................. 3,717.39

CHANDLER L PERRIEN..... 2,515.00
DOUGLAS R PETERS ..... 29,168.41
KATHERINE Y RAMIREZ...... 996.75
KIMBERLY G RAMIREZ..... 1,370.25
ASHTON B RANDERIS .... 3,806.75
AARON L RATLIFF .............. 333.50
BRANDON L RINNAN
................................... 30,632.04
NALLELY I RIVERA ........... 5,927.50
NAOMI F RIVERA ........... 1,550.25
ANTHONY J RODRIGUEZ
................................... 10,417.33
ALAN ROMERO ........... 78,526.10
COLETTE L SAUNSOCI....... 494.52
MICHAEL A SCHRUM ..... 1,200.00
CAMRYN A SCHULTZ ........ 936.62
TAYLOR A SCHWARTE
................................... 36,840.86
MAYAH A SLATER .............. 232.00
KRISTINA L SMITH ................. 0.01
CORY J SNOWGREN
................................. 103,706.02
MIGUEL A SOSA .......... 43,154.91
PAMELA R SOSEMAN..... 6,000.00
LUCIEN N STEINKUEHLER
..................................... 2,087.50
JOANN K GOETTSCH SYKES
........................................ 432.25
DANIEL L TENEYCK ...... 50,356.77
WESTON A TOFT........... 1,813.63
JUAN A TORRES........... 72,160.56
TABITHA TOWNE......... 51,210.06
DEZARAY J TRACY.......... 7,406.05
JEFFREY A TRAILER .......... 8,548.44
ANTHONY S TREJO...... 51,153.77
JORDAN M VEGA .......... 1,773.00
AMELIA VELAZQUEZ....... 9,202.15
AMY N VETTER ............ 49,559.26
MICHAEL G VOGT ....... 61,070.04
MONICA L WALLEY...... 65,523.06
HANNAH M WEBER ...... 1,647.00
CHRISTY A WELCH....... 42,585.69
TYLER L WELLER ............ 50,049.49
MATTHEW C WINEY.... 54,259.55
MORGAN L WINEY........ 1,310.19
TRISTAN S WINEY........ 17,556.41
GARTH J WOLFF .......... 43,023.92
EUGENE D ZENK ........... 1,050.00
TIMOTHY R ZENK........... 1,050.00
JENNIFER M ZUPP-SMITH ... 175.00
TOTAL EMPLOYEE WAGES

.....................2,882,063.37

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING --- PROPOSED BUDGET Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025
CRAWFORD COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

The Board of Hospital Trustees of this County will conduct a public hearing on the proposed fiscal year budget as follows:
Meeting Date: 2/26/2024 Meeting Time: 05:30 PM Meeting Location: Crawford County Memorial Hospital

Conference Rooms C & D.
At the public hearing any resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of, any part of the proposed

budget. This notice represents a summary of the supporting detail of receipts and expenditures on file with the secretary.

Local Government Property Valuation System

Contact Name: Rachel Melby Contact Telephone Number: (712) 265-2500

Proposed taxation rate per $1,000 valuation: 1.56739
Virtual Meeting Information: -

FUND

A
Expenditure

June 30,
2023
Actual

B
Expenditure

June 30,
2024

Re-estimated

C
Expenditure

June 30,
2025

Proposed

D
Transfers

Out

E
Estimated

Ending
Fund

Balance
FY 2025

F
Estimated
Beginning

Fund
Balance
FY 2025

G
Estimated

Other
Receipts

H
Transfers

In

I
Estimated
Amount
To Be

Raised
By Taxation

1. General 39,799,293 41,713,983 45,602,246 0 12,412,612 12,154,184 43,683,193 1,805,223 372,258
2. FICA 0 0 0 0 0 0
3. IPERS 1,429,538 0 0 13,040 0 1,416,498
4. Emergency 0 0 0 0 0 0
5. Ambulance 0 0 0 375,685 0 0 3,427 0 372,258
6. Unemployment

Comp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

7. Debt Service 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
8. Tort Liability/Ins. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
9. Restricted Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
10. Board

Designated 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

11. Total 39,799,293 41,713,983 45,602,246 1,805,223 12,412,612 12,154,184 43,699,660 1,805,223 2,161,014

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING --- PROPOSED BUDGET Fiscal Year July 1, 2024 - June 30, 2025
CRAWFORD COUNTY AG EXTENSION

The Extension Council of the above named County will conduct a PUBLIC HEARING on the proposed fiscal year 2024/2025
budget as follows:

Meeting Date: 2/22/2024 Meeting Time: 05:30 PM Meeting Location: 35 South Main St, Denison
At the public hearing, any resident or taxpayer may present their objections to, or arguments in favor of, any part of the proposed
budget. This notice represents a summary of the supporting detail of receipts and expenditures on file with the Extension Council
Secretary. Copies of the Supplemental Budget Detail (Schedule 674-A) will be furnished upon request.

Contact Name: Collette Huntely Contact Telephone Number: (712) 263-4697

FUND

FYE
June 30, 2023

Actual
Expenditures

FYE
June 30, 2024
Re-estimated
Expenditures

FYE
June 30, 2025

Budget
Expenditures

Estimated
Ending
Fund

Balance
FY 2025

Estimated
FY 2025

Beg.
Balance

Estimated
Amount

To Be Raised
By Taxation

Estimated
Utility Tax

Replacement
and Property
Tax Dollars

1. County Agricultural
Extension Education 286,906 370,442 444,667 106,417 128,234 276,450 279,000

2. Unemployment
Compensation 0 0 2,500 500 0 2,978 3,000

3. Tort Liability 0 0 5,500 1,500 0 6,935 7,000

4. TOTAL 286,906 370,442 452,667 108,417 128,234 286,363 289,000

Proposed taxation rate per $1,000 valuation: $ 0.2077
Virtual Meeting Information: -

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
Budget Estimate

Denison Municipal Utilities
(Name of Enterprise)

The Board of Trustees of Denison Municipal Utilities will conduct a public hearing on
(Governing Board)

the proposed Fiscal year 2025 budget at Denison Municipal Utilities Service Center
(specify fiscal or calendar) (xxxx/xxxx)

on 2/20/24 , beginning at 4:30 o’clock. PM The Budget Estimate Summary of proposed revenues
(xx/xx/xx) (x:xx) (AM/PM)

and expenditures is shown below. Copies of the detailed proposed budget may be obtained or viewed
at the office of the City Clerk or Utility Finance Officer and at the city library. At the public hearing, any
resident or taxpayer may present objections to, or arguments in favor of, any part of the proposed
budget.

2/2/2024 /s/ Renee Vary Secretary
(date) (signature)

Budget Re-estimated Actual
(specify budget years) 2025 2024 2023

Revenues & Other Financing Sources (xxxx)

420,000
(xxxx)

462,500
(xxxx)

242,628Use of money and property
Charges for services 17,064,000 17,154,500 17,225,012
Miscellaneous 5,271,500 1,341,000 1,107,660
Other Financing Sources 220,000 3,100,000 1,525,891

Total Revenues & Financing Sources 22,975,500 22,058,000 20,101,191

Expenditures & Transfers Out
23,867,400 19,713,618 17,478,047Expenditures

Transfers Out 303,500 303,500 291,789

Total Expenditures & Transfers Out 24,170,900 20,017,118 17,769,836

Excess of Revenues & Other Sources
-1,195,400 2,040,882 2,331,355(+) (-) Expenditures & Transfers Out

Beginning Fund Balance July 1 20,483,104 18,442,222 16,110,867
(month)

19,287,704 20,483,104 18,442,222Ending Fund Balance June 30
(month)

BULLETIN-REVIEWA8 | Wednesday, February 7, 2024



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
QUALITY COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
February 20, 2024 Meeting Minutes 
 
A meeting of the Quality Committee of the Board of Trustees was held on Tuesday, February 20, 2024.  Present:  Sid 
Leise, Jay Mendlik, Erin Muck, CEO, Theresa Sheer, CNO, Dana Neemann, Director of Education and Patient Experience 
(exit 3:41pm), Heather Rasmussen, Chief Quality & Ancillary Services Officer.  
Absent:  Michael Luft, DO 
Sid Leise called the meeting to order at 3:34pm 

I. Patient Experience 
Neemann reviewed the December 2023 updated scorecard for HCAHPS.  She noted Communication with 
Doctors has trended up from quarter one (1)  to quarter two (2).  Rehab Services has had great scores in the last 
couple months.  They are currently in the 98th percentile rank.   
 

II. Statistics 
Muck reviewed the January 2024 statistics with the Committee.  Total patient volumes in January were down 
almost 7%.  Inpatient volumes increased from last fiscal year.   

 
III. Medical Staff Credentialing 

The Committee members reviewed the recommendation from the Medical Staff Executive Committee for 
clinical privilege approval of the submitted applications for appointments/re-appointments.  The Committee 
recommends approval action for the Board of Trustees.    

 

   IV. Committee Reports/Minutes  
i. Medical Staff Meeting:  The Committee reviewed the minutes from the Medical Staff meeting 

held on February 13, 2024.    
ii. PFAC:  Neemann gave an update on the activities of the PFAC.  The PFAC wasn’t able to meet 

this month due to scheduling conflicts.  The next meeting is scheduled March 6, 2024 at 
6:30pm. 

iii. 5 Star Journey:  Sheer and Muck shared that we last week we had our Year V kickoff with SEC 
Refocus and Review, Executive Leadership Team Synergy, and Master Train the Trainer 
sessions.      

 
   V. Other Business/Updates 

i. Iowa Lions Eye Bank Letter:  Rasmussen shared the annual letter we receive from the Iowa 
Lions Eye Bank.         

ii. Recruitment:  Muck gave an update on recruitment.  
iii. Building Project:  Muck gave and update on the building project.  
iv. Oracle Cerner Update:  Sheer shared that SuperUsers and Subject Matter Experts have 

weekly calls with Oracle.  Train the Trainer begins next week for all SuperUsers and Subject 
Matter Experts.     
 

VI. Adjournment  Heather Rasmussen, Recorder.  4:27pm 
 
Peer review records are privileged and confidential. Quality Improvement activities are protected from discovery under Iowa Code 147.135.   

Committee Recommendations/Actions:  Recommend Board action regarding Medical Staff Executive Committee 
recommendations for approval of Medical Staff privileges and appointment/re-appointment applications. 
 



Crawford County Memorial Hospital 
Medical Staff Meeting Minutes 
February 13, 2024 

1 | 1 P a g e  
 

 
 

A meeting of the Medical Staff of Crawford County Memorial Hospital was held on Monday, February 13, 2024 
in the hospital’s Meeting Rooms C-D.   
 
Present were David Wright DO, Elizabeth Ranniger MD, Eric Simons MD, Julie Graeve ARNP, Jill Kierscht ARNP, 
Patrick Luft MD, Lori Johannsen, PA-C, Kylee LeFebvre ARNP, Wendell Spencer CRNA, Angie Andersen, IT 
Director, Andrew Segebart, Pharm-D, Director of Pharmacy, Erin Muck CEO, Heather Rasmussen, Chief Quality 
& Ancillary Services Officer, Theresa Sheer CNO    Recorder:  Marcy Fink  
 
Ad Hoc:  Travis Mettenbrink, CCMH Clinic Director, Robert Bowen, MD 
 
Absent were John Ingram MD, Erin Schechinger DNP, Michael Luft DO, Sara Luft ARNP, Randy Kilnoski CRNA 
 
The meeting was called to order by David Wright DO at 8:01 a.m.     
 
 
APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS MONTH’S MINUTES  
The voting members of the medical staff approved the minutes of the January 15, 2024 meeting.    
 
CLINICAL UPDATE 
A. Swing Bed Admissions          Theresa Sheer 

1. Custom Learning Systems (CLS) will be offering a Swing Bed Academy in the Fall of 2024.  If there is a 
provider that would be willing to be a Provider Champion, please talk to Theresa Sheer. 

2. It was also mentioned that according to our policy, Swing Bed patients need to be seen at least once a 
week by a physician.  

 
BUSINESS 
A. IT Updates / Q & A                   Angie Andersen 

1. A Cerner update was given.  There was an integration event the end of January.  The next event will be 
Train the Trainer the end of February.  Physician schedules will be blocked when their training is 
scheduled.   Go Live date is set for June 24th, 2024. 

 
 
ADJOURNMENT         The meeting was adjourned to the Executive Committee at 8:06. 
 
 
David Wright, DO    President, Medical Staff 
 



 

 

 

FEBRUARY 2024 CREDENTIALING 
 

 

NEW APPOINTMENTS 
Wendell Spencer, CRNA 
 

 

REAPPOINTMENTS 
Julie Graeve, ARNP 
Jordan Blackwill, CRNA 
Steven Brownmiller, OD 
Gregory Eckert, MD 
Chad Eicher, MD 
Joel Elson, MD 
Jitendrakumar Gupta, MD 
Randy Kilnoski, ARNP 
Jeb List, MD 
Sao Cheng Liu, MD 



Marketing, pricing strategies, and proprietary information where public disclosure of such information would harm the 
hospital’s competitive position are protected under Iowa Code 21.5 (1)(l) 

 
 

Crawford County Memorial Hospital  
Mission Committee 

February 15, 2024, 4:30 PM 
 
A meeting of the Mission Committee of the Board of Trustees was held on Thursday, February 15, 2024. Present on site 
were Erin Muck (CEO), David Reisz and Heather Wight (recorder). Present via telephone was Jay Mendlik. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 4:40 p.m. 
 
PATIENT EXPERIENCE 
5-Star Journey Update 
• Muck shared the start of Year V Customer Service Training commenced today with Service Excellence Council 

Refocus and Review. Training this year will be focused on strategy and resiliency during times of transition.  
 
PEOPLE 
Union Negotiations 
• Muck shared union negotiations were held and a one-year contract was agreed upon. 

Recruitment 
• General surgeon candidate will be on site at the end of March, and still working out logistical details for an onsite 

visit with an orthopedist at the end of February or beginning of March.  
Intern Program 
• Muck shared as part of recruitment efforts, a summer internship program has been developed and will be advertised 

soon. There will be 3 clinical, 1 lab, 1 radiology, and 1 rehab services internships available. A grant has been applied 
for to assist with funding.  

 
GROWTH 
January Statistics 
• Muck shared that total patient volumes were down almost 7% compared to last January. While inpatient volumes 

increased significantly in January, outpatient volumes continue to lag behind last fiscal year’s volumes. 
Building Project Update 
• Muck reviewed the current work being done for the proposed building project. All documents and necessary 

information have been submitted to the USDA and are waiting to hear back. Currently working on a 
certificate of occupancy for the previous Luft building so that it can be used for hospital-based outpatient 
care and expect to hear back by the end of the month. 

Strategic Planning 
• Fiscal Year 2025 Strategic Planning is scheduled for Tuesday, February 20th. There was good feedback 

received from leadership and that will be combined with feedback from the Board/physician meeting on the 
20th. Feedback from both meetings will be compiled and brought back to the Board at a later date. 

 
FINANCE 
Tax Hearing and County Budget 
• The FY2025 County Budget and Tax Hearing will be on Monday, February 26th at 5:30 p.m. 

EMR Update 
• Oracle Cerner training is on track and moving right along. Super user training starts next week. 

 
COMMUNITY 
EMS Conference 
• Muck shared the 27th Annual Crawford County EMS Conference will be held at the Denison High School 

Fine Arts Center on Saturday, March 2nd, 2024. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 5:07 p.m.  Heather Wight, Recorder 



 

 

 

 

 

Quality 

DNV has a significant focus on quality and we have restructured our internal quality commitee to reflect 
their framework.  This internal commitee will report their work to the Medical Staff and then the 
Quality Commitee of the Board.  They have had their first mee�ng this month and the agenda is set with 
expecta�ons.  The Quality Commitee of the Board should expect reports very soon.  

Pa�ent Experience 

Our Custom Learning System (CLS) Implementa�on Specialist was on site last week for our Service 
Excellence Council and Administra�ve Reset.  He also provided orienta�on to this years’ Service 
Excellence Advisors (SEAs) and spent a day training our ‘Train the Trainer’ group.  He will be back next 
month to assist our Train the Trainer group in training our SEA’s on how to teach this year’s customer 
service training.  This year’s focus is on strategy and resiliency during �mes of change.  Next year will 
then require less assistance from CLS for our 5-Star ini�a�ve.  

As a highlight for this month, our Rehab Services department had an overall ranking of the 98th 
percen�le, and we are seeing significant consistency with their scores.  Theresa and her clinical team 
con�nue to roll out the 5-Star Nurse training and have regrouped regarding transi�on of care.  Travis and 
I are pu�ng the final touches on our 5-Star provider training and will get that rolled out in March at the 
Medical Staff Mee�ng.     

People 

Samantha Pauley from our Emergency Department was recognized as one of the 100 Great Iowa Nurses.  
She provides outstanding care to our pa�ents, assists us with improving policies and processes, and is a 
phenomenal mentor to our staff.  We are very lucky to have her working here and this award is well 
deserved.  A recogni�on party was held for her on Thursday.   

Recruitment efforts con�nue for General Surgery, Orthopedics and Emergency Department.  We have 2 
onsite interviews set up in March and several phone interviews being scheduled.     

Union Nego�a�ons took place in January with a one year contract signed the same day.   This summer, 
the union will have to vote to recer�fy.   

 As part of recruitment efforts, a summer internship program has been developed and posi�ons will be 
posted soon. There will be 3 clinical, 1 lab, 1 radiology, and 1 rehab services internships available. A grant 
has been applied for to assist with funding.  Macy and Dana have led this ini�a�ve and have done a great 
job. 

 

 SUMMARY: 

BOARD SUMMARY: 

CEO Summary 

By: Erin Muck, CEO 

Date:  February 2024 



Growth 

This week INVISION and Graham were on site to review the budget, �meline, and equipment lists.  We 
are currently within budget and our �meline meets the needs of USDA and UMB.  We con�nue to meet 
with USDA biweekly and are on track with their requirements.  If you recall, part of the USDA 
requirement was for CCMH to obtain a bridge loan for $3 million and use $3 million of our cash.  We 
have been working with UMB on the bridge loan and are upda�ng the forecast, due to our previous one 
being over 2 years old.   

We are also working on ge�ng a cer�ficate of occupancy for the building to the south of our main 
campus.  Once obtained we can work with CMS to get that building designated for outpa�ent hospital 
use.  We plan to use that building during phasing, as we will need to en�rely vacate our rehab 
department and 2/3 of the rural health clinic.   

We obtained a lot of good informa�on from our strategic planning session.  Don and I plan to meet with 
our volunteers, PFAC, and other business leaders.  We will compile all the informa�on received and will 
meet with you again to start priori�zing our strategies going forward.   

Theresa and her team have really ramped up the swing bed program.  Our skilled pa�ent days are up 
over 400% and swing bed admissions are up 62.5% from last year.   

Finance 

The proposed county budget has been published as required on February 7.  We are scheduled for the 
public hearing at the board mee�ng to approve the county budget and the tax levy rate.   

There con�nues to be a sta�s�cal decline of total pa�ent volumes by 5.7% so far this fiscal year.  This has 
an obvious effect on revenue.  You will note by the CFO report that January Total Gross Pa�ent Revenue 
was under budget by $425,252.  Our 340B revenue was also under budget by $106,613 due to 
pharmacies pu�ng more restric�ons on the program.  Even with expenses under budget by $155,606, 
we were unable to overcome the revenue deficit.  January’s net loss was $239,402.  Days cash on hand 
remains healthy at 183.  We will con�nue to monitor the debt coverage service ra�o to assure we meet 
our bond requirements.  We are under our goal but remain above the required 1.25.   

You will note on the board agenda that there is a capital purchase request for anesthesia vaporizers.  
Both vaporizers on both machines are not currently working.  These are needed for our pediatric cases.  
They have been ordered and should be installed early next week under my signing authority.  Since the 
purchase is just over the $5,000 threshold and not budgeted, it will require your approval at the 
mee�ng.  

The EMR project con�nue to progress.  This next week will be train the trainer ac�vi�es in all areas.  This 
project has required significant �me and effort of our teams.  We are grateful for their commitment to 
the success of this project.     

Community 

Kelby Eck will be providing a demonstra�on at the board mee�ng of the new Lucas Devices that were 
recently purchased.  The Hospital Founda�on contributed $15,000 of the $20,000 cost.  We are very 



apprecia�ve of the Hospital Founda�on’s generosity and con�nued support of CCMH’s mission of 
providing lifesaving quality care.   

March 2nd we will sponsor the annual EMS conference.  This conference provides excellent educa�on to 
all community emergency responders at no cost and assists in providing the con�nuing educa�on 
needed to remain cer�fied.  Many of these individuals are volunteers and may not choose to remain 
cer�fied if cost becomes an issue.   

IHA Governance Forum 

Just a reminder that the Governance Forum is March 5th.  Let Heather W. or me know if you plan to 
atend and/or you need help signing up.   

 

Respec�ully, 

Erin  

 

 



CRAWFORD COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  
February 22, 2024 12:00 P.M. 

1 | 2 P a g e 

 

 

 
A meeting of the Finance Committee of the Board of Trustees was held on Thursday, February 22, 2024, 
in the Administrative Conference Room. Present on site were Erin Muck (CEO), Rachel Melby (CFO), Amy 
Schultz, Jon Schuttinga and Heather Wight (recorder). 

 
The meeting was called to order at 12:17 pm. 

 

 
Approval of Minutes 
The January 2024 minutes were reviewed and approved. 

 
CFO Report 
The CFO Report was reviewed. 

 
Financial Reports 
Statistical, Income and Cash Flow Report 
Overall, patient volumes were down almost 7% compared to last January.  On a positive note, Theresa 
Sheer and her team have been making a concerted effort to increase skilled patient admissions, which is 
reflected in this month’s admissions and patient days statistics.  An increase of 4 skilled admissions, in 
turn, increased skilled patient days by more than 400%.  Although inpatient volumes increased 
significantly in January, outpatient volumes continue to lag behind last fiscal year’s volumes. 
 
Due to lagging outpatient volumes, the net loss for the month was $239,402.  Although we have been 
mindful of expenses and are under budget, from a strategic planning standpoint we will need to be 
diligent in reviewing service lines that can produce positive profit margins and evaluate the sustainability 
of services that operate at a loss. 
 
Several intermittent payments were made in January to Invision and Custom Learning Systems, which 
totaled $231,293.  We also invested another $120,000 in capital purchases and facility improvements. As 
a result, total cash decreased for the month by $281,430.  Days cash on hand is 183 days and total cash 
balances are $19,412,961.  Due to the sizable monthly loss the rolling DSR decreased to 1.39.  Days in 
A/R also decreased to 52 days, with an overall decrease in A/R of $233,618 compared to last month.  Our 
revenue cycle team had their highest month of up-front collections for the fiscal year, which is a huge 
accomplishment.  Upfront collections help improve cash flow and decrease A/R.

Committee Recommendations: 
1. Total Payroll & Accounts Payable of $3,083,322.41 for approval of payment. 
2. Approve capital purchase for 2 new vaporizers from Draeger in the amount of $5,680. 



CRAWFORD COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING  
February 22, 2024 12:00 P.M. 

2 | 2 P a g e 

 

 

Balance Sheet 
The Balance Sheet as of 01/31/24 reflects Total Assets of $47,838,096. 

 
Payroll & Accounts Payable 
The committee reviewed and recommends total Payroll & Accounts Payable of $3,083,322.41 to the 
Board for approval. This amount includes $1,915,820.47 in salaries. 

Accounts Receivable 
Patient Accounts Receivable as of 01/31/2024 totaled $9,013,071 which is a decrease of $223,618 from 
last month. Private pay A/R is now 31% of our total patient accounts receivable. 
 
Capital Purchases 
Vaporizers 
The vaporizers for the anesthesia machines are no longer functioning and need to be replaced. This is 
particularly important for ear tube procedures with pediatric patients.  In order to avoid delay in patient 
care, 2 vaporizers have been ordered under the CEO’s signature authority. As standard procedure, the 
board will also need to sign off on the capital purchase as the amount was just over the capital threshold 
of $5,000. 

Other Business 
FY2025 County Budget as Published 
The proposed County Budget for FY2025 was reviewed as published on February 7, 2024.  

 
IT Update 
Melby gave an update on the EMR conversion and cyber-security. 

 
Adjourn - The meeting was adjourned at 1:12 pm. 

 



Comparative Statistical Report January 2024

Month to Date Fiscal Year to Date

FY 2024 FY 2023 Variance FY 2024 FY 2023 Variance

Total Admissions 47 40 17.50% 260 363 -28.37%

Acute/OB 35 32 9.38% 200 279 -28.32%

Skilled 7 3 133.33% 26 16 62.50%

ICF 2 2 0.00% 3 7 -57.14%

Respite 0 0 0.00% 0 1 -100.00%

Newborns 3 3 0.00% 31 60 -48.33%

Observation Admissions 9 29 -68.97% 122 137 -10.95%

Total Adjusted Admits 56 69 -18.84% 382 500 -23.60%

Total Patient Days* 253 210 20.48% 1,317 1,450 -9.17%

Acute/OB 135 98 37.76% 635 797 -20.33%

Nursery 6 5 20.00% 53 102 -48.04%

Skilled 79 15 426.67% 243 115 111.30%

ICF 2 4 -50.00% 5 24 -79.17%

Respite 0 0 0.00% 0 2 -100.00%

Observation 31 88 -64.77% 381 410 -7.07%
*Includes Observation  

Average LOS (Acute/OB) 3.53 3.06 15.31% 3.13 2.99 4.73%

Hospital Procedures

Inpatient 1,281 685 87.01% 5,094 5,978 -14.79%

Outpatient 13,108 14,751 -11.14% 95,199 100,381 -5.16%

Total 14,389 15,436 -6.78% 100,293 106,359 -5.70%

Surgical Procedures 92 93 -1.08% 678 728 -6.87%

Anesthesia  Procedures 63 82 -23.17% 537 653 -17.76%

ER Visits 421 436 -3.44% 2,986 3,122 -4.36%

Admits from ER 18 35 -48.57% 171 236 -27.54%

Scheduled Outpatient Visits 66 62 6.45% 657 573 14.66%

Ambulance Trips 140 152 -7.89% 828 843 -1.78%

Xray Procedures 584 791 -26.17% 4,164 4,605 -9.58%

Mammography  Procedures 94 97 -3.09% 932 952 -2.10%

Flouro Procedures 3 2 50.00% 11 18 -38.89%

Ultrasound Dept Procedures 157 187 -16.04% 1219 1367 -10.83%

Echo Procedures 51 40 27.50% 281 289 -2.77%

CT Dept Procedures 197 222 -11.26% 1424 1414 0.71%

MRI Dept Procedures 81 83 -2.41% 548 457 19.91%

Nuc Med Procedures 5 10 -50.00% 51 40 27.50%

Total Radiology Procedures 1,172 1,432 -18.16% 8,630 9,142 -5.60%

Respiratory Tx Procedures 299 182 64.29% 809 924 -12.45%

EKG Procedures 131 126 3.97% 1067 1066 0.09%

Sleep Studies 5 8 -37.50% 57 97 -41.24%

Lab Procedures 6,437 6,987 -7.87% 44,127 48,243 -8.53%

Physical Tx Procedures 1,865 1,894 -1.53% 12,441 11,852 4.97%

Speech Procedures 28 19 47.37% 220 187 17.65%

OT Procedures 157 181 -13.26% 1185 1168 1.46%

Cardiac Rehab Procedures 120 91 31.87% 876 751 16.64%

Pulmonary Rehab Procedures 9 9 0.00% 64 122 -47.54%

Specialty Clinic Visits 371 526 -29.47% 3,519 4,016 -12.38%

Total Medical Clinic Visits 3,153 3,308 -4.69% 22,440 23,715 -5.38%

Crawford County Memorial Hospital



Gray lines are YTD.  All %'s are based on net revenue

except for the variance column and gross revenue.

PATIENT SERVICE REVENUES
      INPATIENT SERVICES 598,968            10.7% 598,933          9.9% 35                 0.0% 446,254          8.1%

2,980,860         8.0% 4,209,189       9.9% (1,228,329)   -29.2% 4,007,844       10.3%
      OUTPATIENT SERVICES 4,851,767         86.6% 5,393,749       89.5% (541,981)      -10.0% 5,021,069       91.4%

33,881,576      90.9% 37,906,249    89.5% (4,024,673)   -10.6% 34,602,110    89.1%
      SWING BED SERVICES 151,335            2.7% 34,641            0.6% 116,694       336.9% 24,541            0.4%

392,079            1.1% 243,450          0.6% 148,629       61.1% 212,440          0.5%

TOTAL GROSS PATIENT REVENUE 5,602,070         100.0% 6,027,323      100.0% (425,252)      -7.1% 5,491,864      100.0%
37,254,515      100.0% 42,358,889    100.0% (5,104,374)   -12.1% 38,822,394    100.0%

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE
      MEDICARE ADJUSTMENTS (1,307,066)       -23.3% (1,218,571)     -20.2% (88,494)        7.3% (936,692)         -17.1%

(8,536,257)       -22.9% (8,563,889)     -20.2% 27,632          -0.3% (7,112,658)     -18.3%
      TITLE XIX ADJUSTMENTS (271,352)           -4.8% (372,939)         -6.2% 101,587       -27.2% (301,073)         -5.5%
 (1,495,239)       -4.0% (2,620,946)     -6.2% 1,125,708    -43.0% (2,317,758)     -6.0%
      BLUE CROSS ADJUSTMENTS (584,009)           -10.4% (611,561)         -10.1% 27,553          -4.5% (662,989)         -12.1%

(3,671,707)       -9.9% (4,297,938)     -10.1% 626,231       -14.6% (3,972,801)     -10.2%
      OTHER ADJUSTMENTS (296,146)           -5.3% (344,406)         -5.7% 48,261          -14.0% (375,965)         -6.8%

(1,801,032)       -4.8% (2,420,423)     -5.7% 619,391       -25.6% (2,315,496)     -6.0%
      PROVISION FOR UNCOLLECTIBLE (144,022)           -2.6% (168,645)         -2.8% 24,623          -14.6% (93,179)           -1.7%

(987,249)           -2.7% (1,185,203)     -2.8% 197,955       -16.7% (984,160)         -2.5%
      CHARITY CARE (20,283)             -0.4% (26,309)           -0.4% 6,026            -22.9% (14,485)           -0.3%

(132,234)           -0.4% (184,895)         -0.4% 52,662          -28.5% (135,582)         -0.3%

      TOTAL DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE (2,622,877)       -46.8% (2,742,432)     -45.5% 119,555       -4.4% (2,384,383)     -43.4%
(16,623,716)     -44.6% (19,273,294)   -45.5% 2,649,578    -13.7% (16,838,454)   -43.4%

NET PATIENT REVENUE 2,979,193         53.2% 3,284,891      54.5% (305,698)      -9.3% 3,107,481      56.6%
      (as % of Gross Patient Revenue) 20,630,799      55.4% 23,085,594    54.5% (2,454,795)   -10.6% 21,983,940    56.6%

NET PATIENT REVENUE 2,979,193         96.8% 3,284,891      94.1% (305,698)      -9.3% 3,107,481      92.7%
      (as % of Total Operating Revenue) 20,630,799      94.7% 23,085,594    94.1% (2,454,795)   -10.6% 21,983,940    93.8%
OTHER REVENUE
      DIETARY/MEALS INCOME 7,238                0.2% 7,300              0.2% (62)                -0.9% 5,858              0.2%

43,378              0.2% 51,100            0.2% (7,722)          -15.1% 46,934            0.2%
      OTHER INCOME 91,554              3.0% 198,167          5.7% (106,613)      -53.8% 237,164          7.1%

1,119,069         5.1% 1,387,167       5.7% (268,098)      -19.3% 1,402,538       6.0%

      TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 98,792              3.2% 205,467          5.9% (106,675)      -51.9% 243,022          7.3%
1,162,447         5.3% 1,438,267       5.9% (275,820)      -19.2% 1,449,472       6.2%

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE 3,077,985         100.0% 3,490,358      100.0% (412,373)      -11.8% 3,350,504      100.0%
21,793,245      100.0% 24,523,861    100.0% (2,730,616)   -11.1% 23,433,412    100.0%

OPERATING EXPENSES
      SALARIES 1,666,429         54.1% 1,867,977       53.5% (201,548)      -10.8% 1,649,803       49.2%
      11,912,616      54.7% 13,124,732    53.5% (1,212,116)   -9.2% 11,596,032    49.5%
      BENEFITS 628,848            20.4% 602,097          17.3% 26,751          4.4% 622,222          18.6%

3,638,360         16.7% 4,164,875       17.0% (526,515)      -12.6% 3,868,390       16.5%
      PROFESSIONAL FEES 251,469            8.2% 104,586          3.0% 146,883       140.4% 273,335          8.2%

1,759,700         8.1% 734,664          3.0% 1,025,036    139.5% 1,826,658       7.8%
      SUPPLIES & EXPENSES 631,345            20.5% 718,383          20.6% (87,038)        -12.1% 613,150          18.3%

4,594,771         21.1% 5,041,555       20.6% (446,784)      -8.9% 4,819,450       20.6%
      OCCUPANCY 136,801            4.4% 135,905          3.9% 897               0.7% 126,371          3.8%

897,302            4.1% 951,332          3.9% (54,030)        -5.7% 873,891          3.7%
      DEPRECIATION 183,150            6.0% 224,700          6.4% (41,550)        -18.5% 210,000          6.3%

1,205,750         5.5% 1,572,900       6.4% (367,150)      -23.3% 1,470,000       6.3%

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE 3,498,042         113.6% 3,653,648      104.7% (155,606)      -4.3% 3,494,881      104.3%
24,008,498      110.2% 25,590,058    104.3% (1,581,560)   -6.2% 24,454,421    104.4%

NET OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (420,057)           -13.6% (163,290)        -4.7% (256,767)      157.2% (144,377)        -4.3%
(2,215,253)       -10.2% (1,066,197)     -4.3% (1,149,055)   107.8% (1,021,009)     -4.4%

NONOPERATING REV/EXP
      TAXES 166,359            5.4% 167,865          4.8% (1,506)          -0.9% 165,896          5.0%

1,164,510         5.3% 1,175,053       4.8% (10,544)        -0.9% 1,161,275       5.0%
      GENERAL CONTRIBUTIONS 1,490                0.0% -                       0.0% 1,490            0.0% 2,348              0.1%

17,640              0.1% 500                  0.0% 17,140          0.0% 2,504              0.0%
      COVID/PRF/FEMA FUNDING -                         0.0% -                       0.0% -                    #DIV/0! -                       0.0%

235,980            20.3% -                       0.0% 235,980       #DIV/0! 192,799          13.3%
      INTEREST INCOME 60,794              2.0% 10,833            0.3% 49,960          461.2% 18,346            0.5%

370,045            1.7% 75,833            0.3% 294,211       388.0% 59,322            0.3%
      INTEREST EXPENSE (47,987)             -1.6% (62,900)           -12.6% 14,913          -23.7% (51,806)           -1.5%

(344,523)           -1.6% (440,301)         -1.8% 95,778          -21.8% (366,707)         0.6%

TOTAL NONOPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 180,655            5.9% 115,798          3.3% 64,857         56.0% 134,784          4.0%
1,443,651         6.6% 811,085          3.3% 632,566       78.0% 1,049,193       4.5%

NET INCOME (LOSS) (239,402)           -7.8% (47,492)           -1.4% (191,910)      404.1% (9,594)             -0.3%
    Year to Date (771,601)           -3.5% (255,112)         -1.0% (516,489)      202.5% 28,183            0.1%

ACTUAL BUDGET VARIANCE ACTUAL

CRAWFORD COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL
OPERATING/INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024

CURRENT MONTH CURRENT MONTH CURRENT MONTH PRIOR YEAR



THIS MONTH YTD

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH RECEIVED FROM PATIENTS AND THIRD -PARTY PAYORS 3,325,236     21,451,015    

CASH PAID TO SUPPLIERS FOR GOODS AND SERVICES (1,614,309)    (11,421,058)  

CASH PAID TO EMPLOYEES FOR SERVICES (1,900,047)    (13,139,940)  

OTHER OPERATING REVENUE RECEIVED 98,792           1,436,553      

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES (90,328)          (1,673,429)     

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

COUNTY TAXES 23,402           1,210,097      

CASH FLOW FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

PROCEEDS FROM ISSUANCE OF LONG-TERM DEBT - - 

PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS ON LONG-TERM DEBT (57,937)          (396,811)        

INTEREST PAID ON LONG-TERM DEBT (30,467)          (327,764)        

ACQUISITION  OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (161,159)       (1,029,804)     

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (249,563)       (1,754,380)     

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

INTEREST RECEIVED 35,058           334,184         

PROCEEDS FROM MATURITIES OF CERTIFICATES OF DEPOSIT - - 

PURCHASE OF CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT - - 

PROCEEDS OF MATURITIES OF U.S. GOVERNMENT AGENCY SECURITIES - - 

PURCHASE OF GOVERNMENT AGENCY SECURITIES - - 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 35,058           334,184         

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH (281,430)       (1,883,527)     

CASH

BEGINNING 19,694,391   21,296,488    

ENDING 19,412,961   19,412,961    

DAYS CASH ON HAND  183

Desirable

OPERATING INDICATORS: AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN Target Trend

Total Margin: -2.79% -3.88% -3.66% -2.37% 0.13% -7.24% 2.00% Increasing

Debt Service Coverage Ratio: 1.69 1.51 1.31 1.52 1.53 1.39 1.60 Increasing

Days Revenue in Patient A/R: 50 53 51 49 54 52 50 Decreasing

Days Cash on Hand: 188 184 194 193 186 183 180 Decreasing

CRAWFORD COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE MONTH ENDING JANUARY 31, 2024



ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

        Total Cash 6,034,079       12.68% 6,400,093      13.38% (366,015)      -5.72% 13,940,797     28.82%

Patient Receivables 9,013,071       18.93% 9,236,689      19.31% (223,618)      -2.42% 9,374,794       19.38%

        Allowance for Uncollectibles (847,000)         -1.78% (833,000)        -1.74% (14,000)        1.68% (764,000)         -1.58%
        Allowance for Contractuals (2,540,000)      -5.34% (2,730,000)     -5.71% 190,000        -6.96% (2,740,000)      -5.66%

        Net Accounts Receivable 5,626,071       11.82% 5,673,689      11.86% (47,618)        -0.84% 5,870,794       12.14%

Other Receivables

        Est. Third Party Settlement -                       0.00% -                      0.00% -                    0.00% -                       0.00%

        Taxes Receivable 801,601          1.68% 825,003          1.72% (23,402)        -2.8% 817,866           1.69%

        Other 489,583          1.03% 698,105          1.46% (208,522)      -29.87% 322,371           0.67%

Inventory 1,441,393       3.03% 1,426,957      2.98% 14,436          1.01% 1,169,085       2.42%

Prepaid Expenses & Other 1,704,852       3.58% 1,517,577      3.17% 187,275        12.34% 899,368           1.86%

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 16,097,578     33.82% 16,541,424    34.58% (443,845)      -2.68% 23,020,281     47.59%

ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE

Investments

        Cash & CD's 12,978,870     27.26% 12,945,403    27.06% 33,467          0.26% 6,550,280       13.54%

        Bond/Project Funds 400,012          0.84% 348,895          0.73% 51,117          14.65% 410,108           0.85%

        Interest Receivable 105,354          0.22% 79,619            0.17% 25,735          32.32% 45,441             0.09%

TOTAL ASSETS LIMITED AS TO USE 13,484,236     28.33% 13,373,917    27.96% 110,320        0.82% 7,005,830       14.48%

OTHER ASSETS

         Physician Practice Intangibles 815,000          1.71% 815,000          1.70% -                    100.00% 815,000           1.68%

TOTAL OTHER ASSETS 815,000          1.71% 815,000          1.70% -                    0.00% 815,000           1.68%

PROPERTY & EQUIPMENT, NET

        Land 314,500          0.66% 314,500          0.66% -                    0.00% 314,500           0.65%

        Land held for Future Dev 120,400          0.25% 120,400          0.25% -                    0.00% 120,400           0.25%

        Land Improvements 2,511,827       5.28% 2,511,827      5.25% -                    0.00% 2,511,827       5.19%

        Building 8,670,091       18.21% 8,670,091      18.12% -                    0.00% 8,670,091       17.92%

        Fixed Equipment 18,079,267     37.98% 18,068,106    37.77% 11,161          0.06% 17,815,915     36.83%

        Major Moveable Equipment 18,891,697     39.68% 18,782,629    39.26% 109,067        0.58% 18,823,071     38.91%

        Leased Equipment 1,439,076       3.02% 1,439,076      3.01% -                    0.00% 1,491,468       3.08%

        Deferred Costs 845,584          1.78% 682,961          1.43% 162,623        0.00% 127,712           0.26%

        Allowance for Depreciation (37,263,104)    -78.28% (37,079,954)   -77.51% (183,150)      0.49% (35,624,027)    -73.64%

TOTAL PROPERTY & EQUIP, NET 13,609,338     28.59% 13,509,636    28.24% 99,702          0.74% 14,250,956     29.46%

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

        Pension Related Deferred Outflows 2,767,672       5.81% 2,767,672      5.79% -                    0.00% 2,385,266       4.93%

        Deferred Loss on Refunding 830,448          1.74% 830,448          1.74% -                    0.00% 899,653           1.86%

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS 3,598,120       7.56% 3,598,120      7.52% -                    0.00% 3,284,919       6.79%

TOTAL ASSETS 47,604,272     98.29% 47,838,096    98.30% (233,824)      -0.49% 48,376,986     96.46%

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

        Accounts Payable 515,276          1.08% 506,184          1.06% 9,092            1.80% 510,176           1.05%

        Accrued Payroll & Payroll Taxes 1,918,891       4.03% 1,858,810      3.89% 60,081          3.23% 1,824,530       3.77%

        Accrued Health Ins & Flex 1,682,480       3.53% 1,579,925      3.30% 102,555        6.49% 1,840,494       3.80%

        Deferred Pro Tax Receivable 831,793          1.75% 998,151          2.09% (166,359)      -16.67% 829,475           1.71%

        Due to Third Parties - Other 3,982               0.01% 13,357            0.03% (9,375)           -70.19% 7,921               0.02%

        Lease Payable - Short Term -                       0.00% -                      0.00% -                    0.00% -                       0.00%

        Est. Third Party Settlements 1,226,500       2.58% 1,226,500      2.56% -                    0.00% 250,000           0.52%

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 6,178,922       12.98% 6,182,927      12.92% (4,005)           -0.06% 5,262,596       10.88%

OTHER LIABILITIES

        Lease Payable - Long Term 76,407             0.16% 81,394            0.17% (4,987)           -6.13% 202,512           0.42%

        Bonds Payable - Long Term 18,927,941     39.76% 18,980,891    39.68% (52,950)        -0.28% 19,944,984     41.23%

        Interest Payable 65,174             0.14% 47,653            0.10% 17,520          36.77% 70,308             0.15%

        Net Pension Liability 7,885,095       16.56% 7,835,095      16.38% 50,000          0.64% 777,586           1.61%

TOTAL LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 26,954,617     56.62% 26,945,034    56.33% 9,583            0.04% 20,995,391     43.40%

TOTAL LIABILITIES 33,133,539     69.60% 33,127,961    69.25% 5,578            0.02% 26,257,987     54.28%

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

        Pension Related Deferred Inflows 2,013,105       4.23% 2,013,105      4.21% -                    0.00% 10,629,374     21.97%

        OPEB Related Deferred Inflows 175,696          0.37% 175,696          0.37% -                    0.00% 205,039           0.42%

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS 2,188,801       4.60% 2,188,801      4.58% -                    0.00% 10,834,413     22.40%

NET ASSETS

        General Fund 13,053,534     27.42% 13,053,534    27.29% -                    0.00% 11,256,402     23.27%

        Net Revenue (Loss) (771,601)         -1.62% (532,200)        -1.11% (239,402)      44.98% 28,183             0.06%

TOTAL NET ASSETS 12,281,933     25.80% 12,521,334    26.17% (239,402)      -1.91% 11,284,586     23.33%

TOTAL LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 47,604,272     100.00% 47,838,096    100.00% (233,824)      -0.49% 48,376,986     100.00%

Month Month Net Change Month

CRAWFORD COUNTY MEMORIAL HOSPITAL

BALANCE SHEET

AS OF: 1/31/24

Current Prior 1-Month 1 Year Ago



Abbvie US, LLC - Supplies $6,483.00 Draeger, Inc. - Supplies $289.14
Access Technologies, Inc. - Fees $1,417.96 Echo Group, Inc. - Supplies $1,248.36
Acute Care, Inc. - Fees $48,027.08 Egold Fax - Fees $341.16
Advance Medical Designs - Supplies $175.95 Ace Ettleman - Rent $550.00
Cassidie Ahart - Expenses $169.06 Eventide Lutheran Home - Fees $258.75
Airgas USA, LLC - Supplies $5,210.31 Family Crisis Centers - Fees $500.00
Alcon Vision, LLC - Supplies $7,949.12 Fareway Stores - Supplies $884.64
American Messaging - Fees $37.35 Farmer Bros. Co. - Supplies $1,273.91
AmerisourceBergen - Supplies $2,016.48 Federal Express - Fees $6.92
Ameritex Services - Fees $6,258.27 Feld Fire - Fees $99.00
AMN Healthcare Physicians - Fees $8,000.00 FFF Enterprises - Supplies $2,529.48
Ampride Tire & Auto Center - Fees $140.32 First National Bank Omaha - Expenses $4,455.25
Anderson Erickson Dairy - Supplies $468.97 FNIC - Premiums $6,037.78
AngleMD, LLC - Supplies $852.00 Frontier Telephone Co. - Telephone $107.23
Applied Medical - Supplies $432.00 Yeseni Garcia Patino - Expenses $169.06
Archprocoding - Fees $87.00 GE Healthcare - Supplies $21,051.99
ARJO, Inc. - Supplies $278.16 Grainger - Supplies $193.02
Diane Arkfeld - Expenses $36.38 Jamie Gross - Expenses $26.60
Armstrong Medical - Supplies $246.00 GRP & Associates, Inc. - Fees $475.22
Arthrex - Supplies $550.00 H&R Accounts, Inc. - Fees $5,720.54
Avant - Fees $37,224.30 Health Care Logistics - Supplies $120.00
Baxter Healthcare - Supplies $311.50 Health Partners of SW IA - Fees $5,482.00
Bayer Healthcare - Supplies $4,495.22 Healthcare Financial Management - Fees $2,500.00
Beckman Coulter, Inc. - Supplies $1,816.12 Healthcare Infection Control - Supplies $499.49
Bio-Rad Laboratories - Supplies $712.41 Healthmark Industries - Supplies $2,606.97
Bluespace Creative - Fees $993.75 Hologic, Inc. - Supplies $594.00
Bomgaars - Supplies $428.38 Hrabik Welding Industries - Fees $340.00
Boston Scientific Corp. - Supplies $175.49 Hy-Vee, Inc. - Supplies $229.85
Bound Tree Medical - Supplies $539.62 IA Dept of Public Health - Fees $35.00
Bracco Diagnostics, Inc. - Supplies $3,208.96 ICAN, Inc. - Fees $350.00
Rahni Brower - Expenses $36.38 ICP Medical, LLC - Supplies $1,131.54
Brown's Medical Imaging - Fees $11,981.25 ICU Medical, Inc. - Supplies $5,181.94
Bulletin-Review - Fees $237.48 ID Apparel, LLC - Supplies $360.00
Cable Channel 13 - Fees $300.00 IDEXX Distribution, Inc. - Supplies $783.41
Cardinal Health - Supplies $42,750.41 Iowa Hospital Association - Fees $325.00
Cardinal Supplies and Fresheners - Supplies $52.80 IRHTP - Fees $545.00
Caresfield, LLC - Supplies $205.28 KCI USA, Inc. - Supplies $665.76
Dakota Carrasco - Expenses $205.44 Kelli's Gift Shop Supplier - Supplies $474.62
Cassling - Fees $11,663.14 Jill Kierscht - Expenses $41.54
CDW Government - Supplies $304.74 Jennifer Knickman - Expenses $36.38
Central Iowa Detention - Fees $1,629.45 Landauer, Inc. - Supplies $414.84
Cerner Corporation - Fees $3,215.05 Language Lines Services - Fees $283.56
Change Healthcare - Fees $14,320.77 Lifeserve Blood Center - Supplies $6,506.88
CHI Health - Fees $1,838.33 Patrick Luft - Expenses $962.00
Chubb & Son - Fees $23,153.00 Macro Helix, LLC - Fees $13,006.18
Ciox Health - Supplies $6.21 Manilla Times - Advertising $448.88
Cisco Systems Capital - Fees $73.94 Mapleton Press - Advertising $193.00
City of Denison - Sponsorship $250.00 Marco, Inc. - Fees $9,435.60
Cobblestone Inn & Suites - Fees $4,225.28 Martin Bros Dist. Co., Inc - Supplies $3,702.70
Colonial Life - Premiums $1,175.08 McKesson Medical Surgical - Supplies $18,657.58
CompHealth - Fees $45,788.40 Medibadge, Inc. - Supplies $38.25
Compression Dynamics, LLC - Supplies $547.31 Medical Solutions - Fees $29,869.70
Constellation New Energy - Utilities $14,341.30 Medimizer, Inc. - Supplies $1,785.00
Convergeone, Inc. - Fees $12,995.00 Mediroutes - Fees $1,800.00
CPSI - Fees $29,075.00 Medline Industries, Inc. - Supplies $6,722.39
Craw Co. Abstract Co. - Fees $290.00 Eile Meseck - Scholarship $1,000.00
Crawford County Engineers - Fees $1,188.05 Michael & Sara Luft - Fees $300.00
Culligan of Ida Grove - Fees $142.63 MidAmerican Energy - Utilities $264.60
Custom Learning Systems - Fees $68,670.00 Mindray DS USA, Inc. - Supplies $900.40
Custom Trends, LLC - Supplies $94.00 Moria - Supplies $1,717.78
Database Solutions, Inc. - Fees $3,920.00 Dr. Stephen Morse - Fees $38,083.40
Dell Marketing LP - Supplies $6,141.60 Network Services Company - Supplies $2,806.48
Denison Bulletin & Review - Advertising $4,081.31 New Century FS - Fuel $4,578.87
Denison Hardscapes, Inc. - Fees $1,591.25 New York Life - Premiums $3,021.60
Denison Municipal Utilities - Utilities $15,380.96 Nuare, Inc. - Supplies $136.32
Denman & Company $2,380.00 Nuance Communications - Fees $2,783.78
DirectTV - Fees $841.84 NW Iowa Yes Center - Fees $211.00
Dish - Fees $900.74 Kora Obrecht - Scholarship $1,000.00
DMS Health Technologies - Supplies $7,294.00 Omnicell, Inc. - Fees $80.00
Do It Best Hardware - Supplies $1,186.66 Onmedia - Advertising $491.00
Dollar General Corporation - Supplies $14.20 O'Reilly Auto Parts - Supplies $30.96
Dorsey & Whitney - Fees $387.50 Owens & Minor - Supplies $17,381.12

CCMH Expenses Paid for the Month of January 2024



Oxen Technology - Fees $10.00 St. Anthony Regional Hospital - Fees $6,747.50
Pararev - Fees $1,912.50 Staples Advantage - Supplies $2,940.37
Performance Health - Fees $348.97 State Hygienic Laboratory - Fees $1,481.16
Petty Cash - Petty Cash $200.00 Steris Corporation - Supplies $561.75
Pfizer, Inc. - Supplies $3,219.60 Stryker Endoscopy - Supplies $2,929.34
Pharmacy Onesource - Supplies $533.49 Stryker Sales Corp. - Supplies $3,258.90
Philips Healthcare - Supplies $87.76 T.A Penke & Associates - Fees $64.00
Phoenix Textile Corp. - Supplies $349.44 Takeda Pharmaceuticals - Supplies $9,790.56
Physicians Lab Services - Fees $9,638.50 Team Ford Lincoln - Fees $190.10
PICC Stat Clinical Services - fees $1,400.00 Tech Medical Services - Fees $136.36
Pipeline Health Holding - Supplies $3,872.29 The Rhino Group - Fees $5,398.00
Pitney Bowes - Postage $1,500.00 Theresa Thompson - Expenses $45.00
Pizza Ranch - Fees $273.89 Thoroughcare, Inc. - Supplies $590.00
Plunkett's Pest Control - Fees $196.62 Thrifty White - Fees $568.38
Joseph Postanes - Expenses $25.55 Tri-Anim Health Services - Fees $183.30
Practical Sleep Services - Fees $3,630.00 Turnkey Pharmacy Solutions - Fees $751.05
Precision Dynamics Corporation - Supplies $1,006.40 UKG, Inc. - Fees $223.24
Press Ganey Association, Inc. - Fees $7,176.02 UnityPoint Health - Fees $450.00
Professional Computer Solutions - Fees $220.00 UnityPoint Heal - Occupational Medicine - Fees $144.00
Professional Medical Management - Supplies $6,831.00 UNMC Center for Continued Education - Fees $510.00
Propio Language Service - Fees $1,079.25 US Foods - Supplies $11,793.64
QuVa Pharma, Inc. - Supplies $1,009.85 Van Meter, Inc. - Supplies $633.92
R&S Waste Disposal - Fees $1,187.99 Verizon Wireless - Telephone $277.86
Rasmussen Mechanical Services - Fees $392.19 Vetter Equipment - Supplies $250.00
Rayner Surgical, Inc. - Supplies $1,950.00 Vision Service Plan - Premiums $3,500.33
Recruiting Resources - Fees $21,040.00 Visual Edge IT, Inc. - Fees $586.77
Redsail Technologies - Supplies $6.92 VVC Holding, LLC - Fees $8,667.89
Rolling Hills Community - Fees $7,105.00 Walmart / Capital One - Supplies $306.31
Ashley Rosener - Scholarship $1,000.00 Wells Fargo Financial Lease - Fees $1,870.36
Scribe EMR - Fees $12,730.00 Western Iowa Networks - Telephone $2,449.02
Secure Shred Solutions - Fees $1,354.00 Kelly Wieman - Expenses $62.88
See The Trainer - Supplies $70.85 WIN - Fees $1,500.00
Shared Medical Solutions - Fees $3,225.00 Dr. David Wright - Expenses $720.00
Sherwin Williams - Supplies $296.60 Patient Account Refunds $8,587.01
SpendMend, LLC - Fees $850.00

January Check Run $884,650.04

DEPRECIATION FUND:
Invision Architecture - Master Facility Plan $162,623.37
Marco, Inc. - Wireless Network Upgrade $79,997.92
Owens & Minor - Occular Machine $8,212.68
Plumbing & Heating Whsl - Boiler Upgrades $823.77
Rasmussen Mechanical Services - HVAC $11,161.14
Stryker Medical - Lucas Devices $20,033.02

Depreciation Total $282,851.90

Salaries $1,915,820.47

GRAND TOTAL $3,083,322.41






















	01 February 26 2024 Agenda
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	VII. PEOPLE
	X. ADJOURNMENT

	02a 2024 01 29 Board of Trustees Minutes
	02b 2024 2 20 Board of Trustees Minutes - Special Meeting - Strategic Planning
	03 FY2024 County Budget Publication
	05a February 2024 Board Quality Meeting Minutes
	05b 2024 Medical Staff Minutes
	07a 2024 Board Credentialing
	07b 2024 02 15 Mission Meeting Minutes
	Crawford County Memorial Hospital
	Mission Committee
	PATIENT EXPERIENCE
	PEOPLE

	08c Board CEO Report Summary February 2024 - Private
	09a 2024 02 22 Finance Minutes
	Approval of Minutes
	CFO Report
	Financial Reports
	Balance Sheet
	Payroll & Accounts Payable
	Accounts Receivable
	Vaporizers
	The vaporizers for the anesthesia machines are no longer functioning and need to be replaced. This is particularly important for ear tube procedures with pediatric patients.  In order to avoid delay in patient care, 2 vaporizers have been ordered unde...
	Other Business FY2025 County Budget as Published
	IT Update

	09a1 January Stats
	09a2 January Income Statement
	09a3 January Statement of Cash Flow
	09a4 January Balance Sheet
	09a5 January AP
	09b1 Vaporizer Capital Purchase Request form - signed
	09b2 Vaporizer Quote and PO

